
IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF TEXAS 

FORT WORTH DIVISION 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, 

Plaintiff, 

v. 

6 
6 
6 
6 .  
6 
6 

PHARMAFAB, INC., a corporation, 6 
PFAB LP, d.b.a. PHARMAFAB, a limited 6 
partnership, and MARK T. TENGLER 6 
and RUSS L. McMAHEN, individuals, 6 

6 
Defendants. 6 

MI APR 20 PH 2: 04 

'CLERK OF COURT 

Civil Action No. 

a-ovcv - 2 3 8 -  A 

COMPLAINT FOR PERMANENT INJUNCTION 

The United States of America, plaintiff, by and through its undersigned counsel, and on 

behalf of the Food and Drug Administration (FDA), respectfully represents as follows: 

INTRODUCTION 

I .  This statutory injunction proceeding is brought under the Federal Food, Drug, and 

Cosmetic Act (Act), 21 U.S.C. 6 332(a), to permanently enjoin the defendants, PharmaFab, Inc., 

a corporation, PFab, LP (PFab), doing business as PharmaFab, a limited partnership (collectively, 

"PharmaFab" unless otherwise noted), and Mark T. Tengler and Russ L. McMahen, individuals 

(collectively "Defendants"), from: (a) violating 2 1 U.S.C. 8 33 1 (a) by introducing or delivering, 

or causing to be introduced or delivered, into interstate commerce drugs that are adulterated 

within the meaning of 21 U.S.C. 5 35 l(a)(2)(B); (b) violating 21 U.S.C. 6 33 1(k) by causing 

drugs that Defendants hold for sale after shipment of one or more of their components in 

interstate commerce to become adulterated within the meaning of 21 U.S.C. 6 35 l(a)(2)(B); (c) 
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violating 21 U.S.C. 8 331(a) by introducing or delivering, or causing to be introduced or 

delivered, into interstate commerce drugs that are misbranded within the meaning of 21 U.S.C. 

9 352(f)(l); (d) violating 21 U.S.C. 8 331(k) by causing drugs that Defendants hold for sale after 

shipment of one or more of their components in interstate commerce to become misbranded 

within the meaning of 21 U.S.C. $ 352(f)(1); and (e) violating 21 U.S.C. 8 331(d) by introducing 

or delivering, or causing to be introduced or delivered, into interstate commerce new drugs that 

are neither approved pursuant to 2 1 U.S.C. 8 355(a), nor exempt from approval pursuant to 21 

U.S.C. 8 355(i). 

JURISDICTION 

2. This Court has jurisdiction over the subject matter and over all parties to this 

action pursuant to 2 1 U.S.C. 9 332(a) and 28 U.S.C. $$ 133 1, 1337, and 1345. 

VENUE 

Venue in this district is proper under 28 U.S.C. $9 1391(b) and (c). 

DEFENDANTS 

Defendant PharmaFab, Inc. has been incorporated under the laws of the state of 

Texas since 1994 and conducts business at 2940 North State Highway 360, Suite 100, Grand 

Prairie, Texas (the "facility"), within the jurisdiction of this Court. PharmaFab is the parent 

company of two subsidiary companies, which jointly own PFab, LP, as detailed below. All drug 

manufacturing is conducted by PFab. 

Defendant PFab, LP d.b.a. PharmaFab, the manufacturing arm of PharmaFab, Inc, 

is a partnership established in 1999 between two PharmaFab, Inc., subsidiaries. The firm is a 

contract manufacturer that has manufactured, processed, packed, labeled, held, and distributed 
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over one hundred different drug products, including cough/cold products, postpartum 

hemorrhage products, and ulcer treatment products. PFab manufactured drug products for at 

least thirty-eight customers and was identified as the manufacturer on each customer's labels, but 

has not conducted any own-label manufacturing. PFab conducts business at the facility, within 

the jurisdiction of this Court. 

6. Defendant Mark T. Tengler, an individual, is the President of PharrnaFab, Inc. and 

Manager of PFab, LP. He is responsible for, and has authority over, all operations of PFab, 

including quality, manufacturing, purchasing, new product development, facilities, human 

resources, and finances. Mr. Tengler maintains an office and performs his duties at the facility. 

7. Defendant Russ L. McMahen is the Vice President of Scientific Affairs of PFab, 

LP. He oversees the engineering staff and is responsible for equipment and process validation. 

His responsibilities include, but are not limited to product formulation and certifying PFab's 

facility, equipment, and systems for compliance with FDA regulations. Mr. McMahen maintains 

an office and performs his duties at the facility. 

8. Defendants have been, and are now engaged in manufacturing, processing, 

packing, labeling, holding, and distributing drug products for a variety of uses, in both liquid and 

solid forms, that are drugs within the meaning of 21 U.S.C. 9 321(g). 

9. Defendants regularly manufacture drugs using components they receive in 

interstate commerce and introduce finished drug products into interstate commerce for shipment 

outside the state of Texas. 
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Adulterated Drugs 

10. FDA's inspections of Defendants' facility beginning in 2004 established that the 

drug products being manufactured and distributed by Defendants were adulterated within the 

meaning of 21 U.S.C. $ 35 1 (a)(2)(B) in that they were drugs, within the meaning of 21 U.S.C. 

5 321 (g) and that the methods used in, or the facilities or controls used for, their manufacture, 

processing, packing, or holding did not conform to or were not operated or administered in 

conformity with FDA regulations establishing current good manufacturing practice (CGMP). 

11. Compliance with the CGMP regulations, promulgated at 21 C.F.R. Parts 210 and 

2 1 1, assures that drugs meet the requirements of the Act as to safety and have the identity and 

strength and meet the quality and purity characteristics that they purport or are represented to 

possess. Drugs not manufactured, processed, packed, or held in conformance with CGMP 

regulations are deemed adulterated as a matter of law, without any showing of actual defect. 

12. FDA spent more than 20 days inspecting Defendants' facility from March 20 

through May 2,2006 (2006 Inspection). During this most recent inspection, FDA investigators 

documented 21 significant deviations from the CGMP regulations. These CGMP violations 

included, but were not limited to, the following: 

A. Failure to record and justifl deviations from written specifications, 

standards, sampling plans, test procedures, or other laboratory control 

mechanisms, as required by 21 C.F.R. $21  1.160(a); 

Failure to test each batch of controlled-release dosage form drug product 

to determine conformance to the specifications for the rate of release for 

each active ingredient, as required by 2 1 C.F.R. $ 2 1 1.167(c); 
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Failure to design an adequate written testing program to assess the stability 

characteristics of drug products to determine the appropriate storage 

conditions and expiration dates, as required by 2 1 C.F.R. $ 2 1 1.166(a); 

Failure to establish written procedures for reprocessing in-process batches 

to ensure that the reprocessed batches will conform to all established 

standards, specifications, and characteristics, as required by 21 C.F.R. 

5 21 1.1 15(a); 

Failure of the quality control unit (QCU) to review drug product 

production and control records to determine compliance with all 

established approved written procedures before a batch is released and 

distributed, as required by 2 1 C.F.R. g 21 1.192; and 

Failure of the QCU to follow written procedures, as required by 21 C.F.R. 

g 21 1.22. 

13. The 2006 Inspection was conducted as a follow-up to violative inspections 

conducted from December 9,2004, through February 17,2005 (200412005 Inspection), and 

January 5 through January 14,2004 (2004 Inspection). Both of these previous inspections 

showed substantially similar and equally serious CGMP violations as the 2006 Inspection. The 

failure to follow CGMP regulations also resulted in the submission of unreliable data to FDA as 

part of a customer's supplemental drug application. During the previous two inspections, FDA 

investigators made observations of deviations from CGMP including, but not limited to: failure 

to validate the performance of manufacturing processes; failure to develop and follow a complete 

written stability program; failure to have an effective quality control unit; failure to have 
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adequate procedures for, and investigations of, complaints and out-of-specifications ( 0 0 s )  test 

results; failure to record and justify deviations from written procedures; failure to establish 

written procedures for reprocessing in-process batches; failure to thoroughly review a batch, or 

any of its components, following OOS test results; and failure to record and justify deviations 

from written specifications, standards, sampling plans, test procedures, or other laboratory 

control mechanisms. 

Defendants violated the Act, 21 U.S.C. 5 33 l(a), by introducing and delivering for 

introduction into interstate commerce articles of drug, as defined by 21 U.S.C. 5 321(g)(l), that 

are adulterated within the meaning of 21 U.S.C. 5 35 l(a)(2)(B), as set forth above. 

15. Defendants violated the Act, 21 U.S.C. 5 33 1 (k), by causing the adulteration 

(21 U.S.C. 5 35l(a)(2)(B)) of articles of drug, as defined by 21 U.S.C. 5 321(g)(l), while such 

articles are held for sale after shipment of one or more of their components in interstate 

commerce. 

Unapproved New Drugs 

Defendants have been engaged in the manufacture, processing, packing, labeling, 

holding, and distribution of numerous unapproved new drugs that they have introduced or have 

caused to be introduced into interstate commerce, in violation of 21 U.S.C. 5 331(d). These 

unapproved new drugs included, but were not limited to: 

De-Congestine Sustained Release Capsules; 
GFN 1200lDM 60/PSE 60 Extended-Release Tablets; 
Rhinacon A Tablets; 
Sudal 12 Chewable Tablets; 
Histex PD 12 Suspension; 
Atuss HX CIII; 
Ergotrate Tablets; and 
Hyoscyamine Sulfate Time-Release Capsules 
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17. Defendants' products are drugs within the meaning of 2 1 U.S.C. $ 32 1 (g) because 

they are intended for use in the diagnosis, cure, mitigation, treatment, or prevention of disease in 

man or other animals, and/or are intended to affect the structure or any h c t i o n  of the body of 

man or other animals. 

18. Defendants' drug products are "new drugs" within the meaning of 21 U.S.C. 

$ 3 2  1 (p)(l ), because they are not generally recognized among experts qualified by scientific 

training and experience to evaluate the safety and effectiveness of drugs, as safe and effective for 

use under the conditions prescribed, recommended, or suggested in their labeling. Many of 

Defendants' drug products are deemed "new drugs" by regulation, 21 C.F.R. $ 310.502(a)(14), in 

that they are timed release products. 

19. Defendants' drug products lack approved new drug applications (NDA) or 

approved abbreviated new drug applications (ANDA) as required by 2 1 U.S.C. 8 355. These 

drugs are not exempt under 21 U.S.C. $355(i) from the Act's pre-market approval requirement. 

As a result, Defendants' drug products are unapproved new drugs within the meaning of 21 

U.S.C. $ 355(a). 

20. Defendants introduce these unapproved new drugs, or cause them to be 

introduced, into interstate commerce, in violation of 21 U.S.C. $ 33 1 (d). 

Misbranded Drugs 

21. FDA's 2006 Inspection also revealed that the drugs listed in Paragraph 17 are 

misbranded. Defendants' prescription drugs are misbranded in that they are unapproved new 

drugs and in that they lack scientific evidence to demonstrate that these drugs are safe and 

effective as indicated in their directions for use, thus they cannot bear adequate directions for use 
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as required by 21 U.S.C. § 352(f)(1) and are not exempt from this requirement pursuant to 21 

C.F.R. § 201.1 15. 

Prior Warnings to Defendants 

22. Defendants have received many prior warnings about their violative conduct. At 

the close of each inspection, FDA investigators issued a detailed List of Inspectional 

Observations (Form 483) to Defendants and discussed the violative conditions with management. 

During the inspections, the FDA investigators also provided verbal warnings that continued 

violations of the Act could result in further regulatory action. 

23. On June 15,2004, FDA issued a Warning Letter to Ms. Darlene M. Ryan, then- 

President of PharmaFab, Inc. and Manager of PFab, LP, emphasizing the serious nature of the 

CGMP deficiencies enumerated in the Form 483. The Warning Letter stressed that a failure to 

ensure that all products manufactured by the firm were in compliance with the Act and/or a 

failure to correct violations could lead to regulatory action, including seizure and/or injunction, 

without further notice. 

24. On October 11,2002, FDA issued a Warning Letter to Ms. Ryan in reference to 

unapproved single ingredient guaifenesin extended release products. The letter notified her that 

timed release drugs required an approved application prior to marketing. The letter also 

explained that failure to comply with the Act and regulations could lead to regulatory action, 

including seizure and injunction. 

25. Defendants have made many promises to correct their violations of the Act. After 

FDA's most recent inspection, Defendants once again promised to correct their violations. 

Despite FDA's repeated warnings and Defendants' promises, FDA has documented little or no 
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improvement. Each inspection reveals Defendants' continued inability andlor unwillingness to 

operate in compliance with the Act. 

26. The United States is informed and believes that, unless restrained by this Court, 

Defendants will continue to violate 21 U.S.C. $8 331(a), (d), and (k) in the manner herein 

alleged. 

RELIEF REOUESTED 

27. That Defendants PharmaFab, Inc., PFab LP, d. b. a. PharmaFab, Mark T. Tengler, 

and Russ L. McMahen, and each and all of their directors, officers, agents, representatives, 

employees, attorneys, successors, and assigns, and any and all persons in active concert or 

participation with any of them, be enjoined from manufacturing, processing, packing, labeling, 

holding, or distributing articles of drug unless and until Defendants' methods, facilities, and 

controls used to manufacture, process, pack, label, hold, and distribute articles of drug are 

established, operated, and administered in conformity with CGMP and the Act, in a manner that 

has been found acceptable by FDA; and 

28. That Defendants, and each and all of their directors, officers, agents, 

representatives, employees, attorneys, successors, and assigns, and any and all persons in active 

concert or participation with any of them, be permanently restrained and enjoined under 21 

U.S.C. 5 332(a) from directly or indirectly doing or causing to be done any of the following acts: 

A. Violating 2 1 U.S.C. 8 33 1 (a) by introducing or delivering, or causing to be 

introduced or delivered, into interstate commerce drugs that are 

adulterated within the meaning of 2 1 U.S.C. tj 35 l(a)(2)(B); 
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Violating 21 U.S.C. 9 331(k) by causing drugs that defendants hold for 

sale after shipment of one or more of their components in interstate 

commerce to become adulterated within the meaning of 21 U.S.C. 

9 3 5 1 (a)(2)(B); 

Violating 21 U.S.C. 8 331(a) by introducing or delivering, or causing to be 

introduced or delivered, into interstate commerce drugs that are 

misbranded within the meaning of 5 352(f)(l); 

Violating 21 U.S.C. 9 33 1(k) by causing drugs that defendants hold for 

sale after shipment of one or more of their components in interstate 

commerce to become misbranded within the meaning of 21 U.S.C. 

5 352(f)(l); and 

Violating 21 U.S.C. 331(d) by introducing or delivering, or causing to be 

introduced or delivered, into interstate commerce new drugs that are 

neither approved pursuant to 2 1 U.S.C. 9 355(a), nor exempt from 

approval pursuant to 21 U.S.C. 8 355(i). 

That FDA be authorized pursuant to this injunction to inspect defendants' places 

of business and all records relating to the receipt, manufacture, processing, packing, labeling, 

holding, and distribution of any drug to ensure continuing compliance with the terms of the 

injunction, with the costs of such inspections to be borne by defendants at the rates prevailing at 

the time the inspections are accomplished; and 

30. That the Court award plaintiff United States costs and other such equitable relief 

as the Court deems just and proper. 
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Respectfully submitted, 

RICHARD B. ROPER 
UNITED STATES ATTORNEY 

MARK L. JOSEPHS 
Trial Attorney 
DC State Bar No. 449261 
Office of Consumer Litigation 
Department of Justice 
Civil Division 
P.O. Box 386 
Washington, DC 20044 
Telephone: 202.305.3630 
Facsimile: 202.5 14.8742 

Attorneys for the United States of America 

OF COUNSEL: 

DANIEL MERON 
General Counsel 

SHELDON T. BRADSHAW 
Chief Counsel 
Food and Drug Division 

ERIC M. BLUMBERG 
Deputy Chief Counsel for 
Litigation 

JESSICA L. ZELLER 
Assistant Chief Counsel 

United States Department of 
Health and Human Services 
Office of the General Counsel 
5600 Fishers Lane, GCF-1 
Rockville, MD 20857 
301-827-8577 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I hereby certify that a copy of the foregoing complaint, certificate of interested 
parties, and consent decree were mailed via regular mail on this 20' day of April, 2007, to 
the following counsel for defendants: 

Philip Katz, Esq. 
Hogan & Hartson LLP 
Columbia Square 
555 Thirteenth Street, N.W. 
Washington, DC 20004 

Mark L. ~ o s e ~ h s  
Trial Attorney 
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF TEXAS 

FORT WORTH DIVISION 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, 

Plaintiff, 

9 
9 
9 
9 

v. 9 
9 

PHARMAFAB, INC., a corporation, 9 
PFAB LP, d.b.a. PHARMAFAB, a limited 6 
partnership, and MARK T. TENGLER 9 
and RUSS L. McMAHEN, individuals, 6 

6 
Defendants. 6 

Civil Action No. 
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PLAINTIFF'S CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES 

Pursuant to LR. 3.1 (f) plaintiff United States of America represents that the interested 

parties in this case are: ( I )  the United States Department of Health and Human Services and its 

component agency the Food and Drug Administration; and (2) defendants PharmaFab, Inc., PFab 

LP, d.b.a. PharmaFab, Mark T. Tengler, and Russ McMahen. 

Respectfully submitted, 

RICHARD B. ROPER 
UNITED STATES ATTORNEY 
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MARK L. JOSEPHS 
Trial Attorney 
DC State Bar No. 44926 1 
Office of Consumer Litigation 
Department of Justice 
Civil Division 
P.O. Box 386 
Washington, DC 20044 
Telephone: 202.305.3630 
Facsimile: 202.5 14.8742 
Email: mark.iosephs@,usdo-i .gov 

Attorneys for the United States of America 

OF COUNSEL: 

DANIEL MERON 
General Counsel 

SHELDON T. BRADSHAW 
Chief Counsel 
Food and Drug Division 

ERIC M. BLUMBERG 
Deputy Chief Counsel for 
Litigation 

JESSICA L. ZELLER 
Assistant Chief Counsel 

United States Department of 
Health and Human Services 
Office of the General Counsel 
5600 Fishers Lane, GCF-1 
Rockville, MD 20857 
30 1-827-8577 
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